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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The first troops to arrive in Omaha to carry out the duties of head-
quarters for the newly created Military District of Nebraska in 1862 were
all housed in rented buildings. A11 military functions were carried out
from temporary rented quarters until late 1864.

In October of 1864, with a scarcity of rentable buildings and the
prospect of permanency for the company-sized unit assigned to Omaha, a
"Post at Omaha" was authorized to be constructed near present-day 24th
and Cuming Streets (south of present-day Fort Omaha and the center of the
business district today). The buildings were all constructed of wood and
first occupied in early November.

With the end of the Civil War, the Army returned to the use of rented
buildings, and in October of 1865 the original post buildings were sold.
The Tumber from these bui]dings was either incorporated into new structures
or complete structures were moved to new locations.

The post continued to function in rented buildings until 1868, when
Army Chief of Staff General William T. Sherman of Civil War fame approved
construction of "cheap barracks for one regimenﬁ.“

The site for the new post was selected by Major General C. C. Augur
and personally inspected by General Sherman. The post was to be located
four miles north of the city on forty-two acres of land purchased by Omaha
citizens and leased to the Army (later sold to the Army in 1882). Forty
additional acres were purchased from Augustus Kountze, a prominent Omaha
banker. The eighty and one-half acres of the post formed a parallelogram.

Construction began in September, 1868, and by mid-November the bar-

racks had been completed. The new post was named "Sherman Barracks" in
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7. Descr1ption (cont.) page 2
honor of the General. This was disapproved and the post was re-named "Omaha
Barracks. "

The structures at the post were all frame and faced inwards around a
rectangular parade ground of approximately thirty acres. On the east side
were located the post headquarters, guardhouse, bakery, storehouses, and
sutlers store. There were ten company-sized barracks, five on each side
of the parade ground. A hospital was built in the northwest corner. By
1871 a band barracks, ice house, quarters'for laundresses and married
enlisted men had been added.

In 1878, the Army required Department Commanders and officers to live
on the post. As a result, three new brick buildings were erected at the
post. The first structure to be completed was the commanding general's
home, occupied first by General George Crook, who was stationed at Fort
Omaha as commander of the Department of the Platte from 1875-82 and again
from 1886-88. The house is Tisted on the National Register of Historic
Places. Two additional brick buildings were qomp]eted in 1879, a head-
quarters building and a storehouse. Also, a number of frame bui]dings which
had been used as officer's quarters were repaired and enlarged.

In December of 1878 the name of "Omaha Barracks" was changed to Fort
Omaha. |

By 1886 the fort comprised thirty-eight buildings used as "residences
by officers, places for the transaction of regimental business, storehouses

and manufactories of all kinds requires for local repair." However, time
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had finally caught up with the "cheap barracks" constructed in 1864, and in
1896, when it was determined that the facilities at Fort Omaha were inadequat
for Army needs, the fort was abandoned. When the government was unable to
sell the structures for what it considered a fair market price all of the
original frame buildings were either moved or demolished. Brick buildings
that were built prior to 1896 have survived. The three brick buildings
erected for the Department of the Platte have also survived. The post re-
mained unoccupied betweeh 1896 and 1905 excépt for the staging of the 2nd
Nebraska Regiment during the Spanish-American War of 1898.

In 1905 troops again arrived at Fort Omaha to protect the construction
of new buildings to house the Army Signal Corps. Between 1905 and the end
of W.W.II, all of the early "cheap barracks" were replaced by brick struc-
tures built in an Italianate style. 1In 1909 the Signal Corps added a Balloon |
School to their facilities at the post. A balloon plant was installed in
1909 and the first balloon ascension occurred that year.

In October of 1913 the post was again deactivated but was reopened in
1916 as a training school for observation balloon crews. Additional quarters

“and balloon houses were built and a center for hydrogen production and experi-

mentation with lighter-than-air craft was added.

During the 1920's and the depression of the 1930's the fort was con-
tinuously occupied. Since 1935 the fort has been largely used as a residence
post for officers on duty at Seventh Corps area headquarters. During W.W.II

it served as a support installation for the 7th Service Command.
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7. Description (cont.) page 4

In 1947 the Army»dec]ared the fort surplus property and it was taken

declared Fort Omaha "excess" to their needs and in 1974 the Fort has been
declared "surplus" and will soon be offered to the State or political sub
Adivision thereof for possible adaptive uses.

The following 19th century buildings still stand on the grounds.

Building numbers are those currently used for identification:

Listed on the National Register of Historic Places.
ment of the Platte moved back to Omaha in Tate 1881 it was used as
as officers' quarters.

Bldg. #15 Storehouse. Built in 1879. This building has been trans
formed into married enTisted men's quarters.

Three other buildings erected in 1884 remain today.
vization of the post in 1905 the rear or east wing of the guardhou

was used as a hose house until 1974. 1In ca. 1914 the corridor joi

a garage.

Bldg. #9 Magazine. Recently used to store4Navyfs small-arms ammuni

Few changes over the years.

over by the Navy as a reserve training center. In 1973 the Defense Department

Bldg. #1 Quarters No. 1 (General George Crook House). Built in 1879
B]dg. #4 Department Headquarters. Built in 1879. After the Depart-

post headquarters, chapel, and hospital. Recently it has been used

Bldg. #6 and #10 Guardhouse. Originally one building. After reacti-

se

ning

the wing to the building was removed. The main part of the guardhouse

has been converted into officers' quarters and the wing has become

tion.
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7. Description (cont.) page 5
Bldg. #2 and #3. Double set of officers' quarters. Built at a cost
of $4,000. The first building north of the Crook House. The
building has undergone few architectural alterations.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Ever since troops were first stationed in Omaha in 1%%2, Fort Omaha
has played a major role in the history of the state and the nation.

Soldiers were first assigned to the area temporarily to protect
supplies and frontier supply routes; When Omaha was made the headquarters
for the newly created Department of the Platte in April, 1866, Fort
Omaha was assured a permanent role in frontier history.

Soldiers from the Fort were used to protect the construction of the
Union Pacific Railroad and later the completed line was used to carry
troops'td réi]heads as necessity demanded. They had a major influence
on the Indian Wars of the 1870's and 1890's. Troops from the Fort were
used to protect settlers in the Republican and Loup Valleys during the
1870's. The Yellowstone Expedition was assembled at the Fort in 1873.
Fort troops were used to pursue the Cheyenne during the Outbreak of 1878
and were in the Pine Ridge area in 1890.

Fort Omaha soldiers were used to patrol the streets of roistering
frontier Omaha; they also drew duty on such occasions as the 0live-Fisher

trial in Hastings in.1879, a prison riot in Lincoln, the Omaha courthouse

riot, and the Pullman Strike of 1894.

The roster of notable commanders of the Fort include Brigadier
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8.7 Sighificance (cont.) page 2

General Edward 0. C. Ord (1871-75); General George Crook (1875-82 and again
in 1886-88); Brigadier General 0. 0. Howard (1882-84). Later commanders
included Brigadier Generals Edwin W. Sumner (]898-99); Fitzhugh Lee (1900-
01); Camillo C. C. Carr and Francis Moore (1904); and Major General Leonard
Wood (1919-20).

One of the most important events to occur at the Fort was the trial of
Ponca Chief Standing Bear in 1879. As a result of the trial the courts
decided that Indians were citizens with constitutional quarantees of per-
sonal Tiberty.

During the middle 1880's the Fort was also a social center for the city
of Omaha. The Omaha "400" regularly held their dances and outihgs at the
Fort. The completion of the commanding officer's house in 1879 was "in-
augurated with one of the most notable socié] gatherihgs ever assembled
fn Omaha." During its early years the Fort served as host to Ex-President
and Mrs. Ulysses S. Grant in 1879 and in 1880 to President Rutherford B.
Hays.

During W. W. I Fort Omaha, the fountainhead for all balloon activities
in the United States, trained about 16,000 men who attended school there.
The Fort was probably the largest center for balloon crews in the nation.
In addition, it was a center for hydrogen production and experimentation
with Tighter-than-air craft.

Troops have been stationed at Fort Omaha almost continuously since 1862.

The Fort has played a major role in the history of the frontier and early
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It has had a major impact on the Indian population as well as the

As headquarters for the famed 19th Century

Department of the Platte a preserved Fort Omaha will recall the important

chapters it contributed to United States military history.
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